
 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this Forum.  

 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

PUBLIC TRANSPORT LIAISON 
FORUM 

 
 

Date: TUESDAY, 12 MARCH 2024 at 7.00 pm 

 
 
Civic Suite 
Catford Road 
London SE6 4RU 
 
Enquiries to:    stephanie.rumsey@lewisham.gov.uk     
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Councillor James Royston  Labour Co-op 
Councillor Edison Huynh  L 
Councillor Louise Krupski  Labour Co-op 

 
  

 

Public Document Pack



Members of the public are welcome to attend this Forum.   

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Minutes 
 

1 - 3 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.   Transport Questions/Responses 
 

4 - 12 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC TRANSPORT 

LIAISON FORUM MEETING 

Tuesday 5 December 2023 

 

Present: Councillor Royston (Chair), Councillor Huynh, Councillor Krupski. Trasport 

colleagues from: TfL, Southeastern Network Rail and Stagecoach. 

Also present: Councillor Jacq Paschoud 

 

1. Minutes 

 

Minutes of the last meeting were agreed as accurate. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

 

No interests were declared. 

 

3. Transport Responses 

 

3.1. Question 1- There was no supplementary question. Councillor Huynh 

highlighted that he will be doing a site visit to the road. 

 

3.2. Question 2 – no supplementary questions were asked. 

 

3.3. Question 3- no supplementary questions were asked. 

 

3.4. Question 4: Councillor Royston thanked TfL for response. He asked TfL to 

say more about the plans for active travel strategy for LBL. TfL responded that 

they do regularly catch ups every week and discuss what priorities for the 

borough are. They received extra funding for cycling infrastructure along A21 

spine.  

Councillor Paschoud asked if there was a way in making it mandatory that 

cyclists dismount from the bridge, e.g. a barrier. The Transport Officer said he 

would work with TfL colleagues on the improvement of the bridge and getting the 

funding necessary for replacement works. 

 

3.5. Question 5- RM asked when routes be retendered and is it a requirement of 

the retendering process that electric buses are used going forward. Tfl stated that 

they are waiting for response from colleagues on when these routes will be 

retendered.  He said that he was unsure on requirement for electric buses 

retendering but all buses will be electric by 2034.  

 

3.6. Question 6: No supplementary questions were asked. 

 

3.7. Question 7: Network Rail explained further that the cost of the refurbishment  

is over £1m. The agreement with the local authority is to find funding from their 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



own sources of funding for the passes over the railway and the local authority will 

find funding for the ramp.  

 

3.8. Question 8- The questioner asked a supplementary question about the 1995 

report which considered to build the bridge. Network Rail were not familiar with 

report. The Questioner stated that they would share with colleagues once an FOI 

request had been submitted. 

 

3.9. Question 9: Councillor Huynh asked if there had been explorations of putting 

a gate line at the top of ramp. Southeastern responded that it would not comply 

with safety regulations. At bottom there would not be enough space for barriers. 

They would need to build platform which would be more costly. 

Councillor Huynh then asked if the barriers could be replaced with tap in tap out 

function. It was responded that this barrier gate line prevents anti-social 

behaviour and fare evaders. what would be the measure. Southeastern stated 

that they will be working with TfL and Network Rail to add a gateline to platform 1. 

He added that the investment plans to Lewisham Station will be shared with 

Forum. 

 

3.10. Question 10: No supplementary questions were asked. 

 

3.11. Question 11: The questioner stated that Canada Water is very busy in the 

morning and the East London line is generally congested. He stated that there is 

a hidden demand for traffic towards London Bridge particularly for passengers 

heading North, and there are other routes that are not being utilised. 

 

3.12. Question 12: No supplementary questions were asked. 

 

3.13. Question 13: No supplementary questions were asked. 

 

3.14. Questions 14: The questioner asked why it is so difficult to get a rezoning of 

Lower Sydenham station. Southeastern responded that they are a not for 

dividend company and on subsidy of £350m a year and are expecting significant 

increase of energy cost. In the view Southeastern retail colleagues, it would not 

be revenue generative. It is a viable decision and would also need to be agreed 

by other transport networks, so it is a complex decision. 

 

3.15. Question 15: the questioner asked if were possible to get data of passenger 

numbers for Lower Sydenham and Sydenham Station. 

 

3.16. Question 16: The questioner asked if it would be possible for Stagecoach to 

look at the bus departure timetable for bus 181 from the Bell Green Sainsbury’s. 

as there are long waits and no shelter for passengers. Stagecoach responded 

that by law, drivers must take some relief before starting their new journeys. 

Because of delays, this could mean that the timetable can run overtime. 

 

 

4. AOB 

 

Page 2



4.1. Southeastern gave a brief presentation highlighting that the ticket office 

proposals discussed at the last meeting have now been withdrawn. This was a 

universal decision across the British network. In December 2023, Southeastern 

will be introducing more services with the new timetable. In June, they will 

increase capacity again. 

Page 3



PUBLIC TRANSPORT LIAISON FORUM 

12 March 2024 

Questions 

 

TfL 
1. A number of cameras designed to enforce ULEZ have recently been 

destroyed on TFL roads within the borough (and beyond). What is TFL 
doing to protect these cameras? How quickly are they being replaced? 
And have any enforcement measures been taken against any 
perpetrators?- Councillor Royston 
 
Vandalism is unacceptable and all incidents on our network are reported to 
the police for investigation and we support them with their enquiries. 
Criminal damage to ULEZ cameras or vehicles puts the perpetrators at 
risk of prosecution and injury, while simultaneously risking the safety of the 
public. 
 
We have an extensive camera network, which is sufficient to support the 
effective operation of the scheme and the latest data shows that 95 per 
cent of vehicles seen driving in the zone on an average day are already 
compliant. 

 
2. Within the borough, there remain a number of now out of date signs 

indicating the old borders of the ULEZ zone. When will these be removed? 
– Councillor Royston 
 
The ULEZ Project Team is arranging for the removal of any outdated 
signs. If you have any specific locations we would be able to share the 
programme for their removal. 

 

3. Is TfL still aware of Lewisham council's ambition to make the A21 an active 
travel corridor from Deptford to Downham, especially relating to the 
recently opened Cycleway 4 and the current plans for protected cycle 
lanes along Deptford Church Street, along with LIP funding allocated by 
TfL for Cycleway 18 along A21 Molesworth Street? – Alex Raha, 
Lewisham Cyclists 
 
Yes. TfL Cycleways Network Development (CND) team and Lewisham 
closely work to deliver improvements to cycling infrastructures across the 
borough. This includes fortnightly meeting between the TfL CND team and 
Lewisham Strategic Transport and Highways. 
An initial funding allocation of £774,000 has been granted to Lewisham for 
the Cycleways Network in 2024/2025. Funding allocations prioritised 
schemes that can move to construction in 2024/25 or 2025/26, as well as 
high priority ambitious projects to be developed for future implementation. 
TfL and the borough agreed that cycling infrastructure improvements along 
Molesworth Street should be put on hold until the end of the temporary bus 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



diversion from High St through Molesworth Street. In the meantime, the 
work on a local Cycleway 18 extension will focus on a route from High 
Street to Lee Station. 
Work along the A21 is currently focused on making permanent the 
temporary changes implemented in recent years. TfL remains available to 
discuss potential improvements with Lewisham. 
The prioritisation of Cycleways schemes will be informed by the upcoming 
Lewisham Integrated Active Travel Strategy. Lewisham regularly consults 
TfL as part of the development of this document.  
We are also aware of the need to consider possible future developments 
in the Molesworth Street area, including any future Bakerloo Line 
Extension, upgrade to Lewisham Station, or redevelopment of the 
Shopping Centre. 

 
4. Can TfL confirm they will give Lewisham Council sight of the Outcome 

Definition Report jointly commissioned by the Council and TfL in 2019 
which we understand is in draft form but should provide the Council 
officers with a valid insight into how best to develop the potential of this 
route? N.B This is bearing in mind the Levelling Up fund for Lewisham 
Town Centre and TfL work in and around Catford Town Centre, along with 
TfL's own Strategic cycling analysis and Cycle counts from the A21 
Streetspace scheme highlighting this section of the corridor (Lewisham to 
Catford) as an area with high potential for more cycling?  – Alex Raha, 
Lewisham Cyclists 
 
The draft of the A21 Outcome Definition plan has been shared with 
Lewisham officers. As work was not concluded on this project, the 
incomplete A21 Outcome Definition remains in draft. 

 
5. How can the Island opposite the Horniman Museum on the South Circular 

Road be made safer and practical for the pedestrians? – Councillor Aliya 
Sheikh 
 
We would like to understand these pedestrian safety concerns better. As 
background: in 2014 the junction between A205 London Road and 
Sydenham Rise was changed to make the stagger clearer and give more 
space to people waiting to cross the road. Recently we have reviewed 
signal timings to ensure pedestrians are not waiting too long to cross the 
road. 

 
6. The change in traffic priorities at the junction of Gilmore and Bonfield Road 

is deemed less safe from Motorists continuing Bonfield Road perspective, 
due to lack of signage and new design. This has become a potential blind 
spot. Equally the pedestrians find it confusing. So can this be re-
evaluated? – Councillor Aliyah Sheikh 
 
Could we please arrange a site visit to discuss the matter in more detail 
and better understand the concerns? Please can this include officers from 
Lewisham as these roads are controlled by the borough. 

 

Page 5



7. The traffic light junction of Lewisham High Street and Ladywell Road used 
to have a cycle lane which has been tarmacked and is not in use which 
seems to compromise the safety of bikers. Can the cycle lane be 
reinstated? This question has been raised previously as well. – Councillor 
Aliya Sheikh. 
 
Prior to the A21 Lewisham to Catford scheme, the northbound approach 
consisted of a nearside left turn only lane, an ahead bus lane and an 
ahead general traffic lane. A potential conflict was identified between left 
turning vehicles and cycles travelling ahead, with cyclists being directed 
into a vulnerable position whilst accessing the central bus lane. The new 
scheme addressed this conflict by adjusting the approach to two traffic 
lanes, ahead cycles and left turn traffic being placed within the nearside 
lane. The tarmacking was installed to narrow the carriageway and enable 
the creation of two 3.2m wide traffic lanes. This width enables cyclists to 
take the primary position through the junction, increasing their visibility, 
deterring unsafe vehicle passes and reducing the likelihood of left turn 
conflicts. 

 
Thameslink 
8. Southeastern recently took the sensible step of declassifying its first class 

carriages, freeing up much needed capacity on major routes through the 
borough. When will Thameslink do the same? – Councillor Royston 
 
As on Southeastern, first class does not operate on Southern or 
Thameslink London metro services, although there is some cross-over 
with longer distance services at major stations, e.g. a Brighton to Bedford 
service calling at East Croydon. 
  
As you are likely aware, all London-area rail operators are loss making. 
Any potential benefit of removing first class would therefore need to be set 
against the potential implications of reduced income, and unless offset by 
additional public subsidy to maintain a neutral position, reduced funding 
availability for train services. It is something we are constantly evaluating, 
however as the network contains services which are potentially very well 
suited to a first class offer such as London King’s Cross to King’s Lynn in 
Norfolk, it requires careful consideration. 

 
 

Network Rail 
9. The light on the stairwell running down from the south-west side of Catford 

Bridge to the underpass by the Halfords car park has been faulty for many 
months – leading to an unpleasant and dangerous dark and slippery area, 
which could lead to falls or facilitate attacks. This was raised some time 
ago by residents. Can Network Rail please fix this as a matter of priority, 
and advise the Committee and our residents to whom they should report 
such issues in future, to ensure a swift resolution?- Councillor Royston 
 

Page 6



The stairwell running down from the south-west side of Catford Bridge to 
the underpass by the Halfords car park is not the responsibility of Network 
Rail. The stairwell along with the subway passing under the bridge was 
constructed by Lewisham Council pursuant to an agreement dated 
17/08/1967 with British Rail, who at the time owned the bridge. This 
agreement specifies that the maintenance of the new stairwell and 
subway, including the maintenance of lighting, would be the responsibility 
of Lewisham Borough Council. 
 
As a more general point, Network Rail has no regulatory or contractual 
obligation to light the public highway. Generally (though this is not always 
the case) where lighting is provided on railway structures such as 
footbridges this is arranged via agreement with the local highways 
authority (or local authority) exercising their discretionary powers under 
Section 97 of the Highways Act (1980). 
 
In the event of a lighting fault occurring within a station, in the first instance 
this should be reported to the train operating company – either to a 
member of staff if present, or else via the train company’s website. 
 
In the event that faulty lighting is observed on a railway structure, I would 
recommend that members of the public contact the Network Rail 
community contact team to report this. We can then confirm where 
maintenance responsibility lies. We have a 24-hour telephone helpline on 
03457 11 41 41. We also have an online contact form and a live-chat 
option via our website – 
https://www.networkrail.co.uk/communities/contact-us. 

 
TfL and Stagecoach 
10. The 124 bus route uses one of the smallest bus models seen in 

Lewisham. As a result, buses are often full to capacity and passengers are 
left stranded and unable to board, particularly at busy hours. This is a 
particular problem at the Plassy Road stop, though is an issue at many 
points along the route. Can TFL/Stagecoach please consider using bigger 
buses, or increasing the frequency of this service? And is this route being 
considered for the introduction of electric vehicles, given the number of 
schools along the route? – Councillor Royston 
 
Answer from Stagecoach: We operate route 124 under contract for TfL 
with the current contract due to run until mid-2026. The vehicles used on 
the route are of the length specified by TfL with the shorter buses required 
as there are sections of the route which are not navigable with larger 
vehicles and as such, we are not able to utilise larger vehicles to ease any 
capacity issues there may be. The frequency of the service is also 
specified by TfL and they utilise the passenger boarding data along with 
passenger and stakeholder feedback in order to gauge the level of service 
that is required. We will pass on your feedback to TfL for their information. 
Regarding the vehicles that are used on the route, TfL is aiming to convert 
all bus routes in London to zero emissions and this typically happens as 

Page 7

https://www.networkrail.co.uk/communities/contact-us


part of a new contract being awarded to operate a route, as has recently 
happened with route 199. 
 
TfL and Go Ahead 

11. Has there been feed back from users of the 185 new buses relating to the 
limited number of accessible seats? Many of the seats require access via 
a high step and the seats towards the back of the lower deck have very 
restricted leg room/oddly shaped floor area. – Councillor Paschoud 
 
Answer from TfL: We are committed to providing an accessible transport 
network and all our buses comply with the appropriate legislation. There is 
some variation in seating layouts across the network, as there are different 
makes and models of bus in use. However, all buses have two rows of 
priority seats for passengers who need them, including those who have 
greater accessibility needs such as older people and others less able to 
stand. These are normally located between the front and middle doors for 
convenience. 
 
We encourage operators to have as many seats as possible in the low 
floor area of the vehicle, as we understand this is the most accessible part 
of the bus and makes boarding and alighting easier. We also encourage 
higher numbers of seats with reasonable legroom on the lower and upper 
decks - which is important for passengers who cannot stand for part or 
their entire journey. These seats are located further back, sometimes in 
raised areas over the engine or over the rear wheel arches. The height of 
the seat base from the floor is determined by legislation to make them 
more useable by our customers. 
We recognise that compromises need to be made. Large areas 
accommodate wheelchairs or several buggies and other items; and, when 
needed by a wheelchair user, can be shared by a wheelchair user and one 
or more buggy owners. On the new buses operated on the 185 route this 
is 2 metres long. Other customers need seats in the low floor area, but we 
also need two doors sets of doors to enable easy and quick access and 
egress.  
We are also accommodating a transition from diesel to zero-emission bus 
fleet. On electric buses more space is required to accommodate the 
batteries so some internal spaces will get slightly smaller. Due to the 
weight and balance requirements of the bus, the batteries can only be 
positioned in certain places around the bus – and can make higher steps 
when positioned by the wheel arches. In the longer term, further battery 
development reduce the amount of space used by batteries. 
We are also considering ways to encourage those who can move upstairs 
on double decker buses to do so, thereby freeing up space on the lower 
deck for those that need it. 

 

TfL and Bus companies 
12. What data is held regarding the number of passengers per bus route per 

bus stop and how is this data broken down (by hour, day, week etc.)? 

Page 8



Could this data be supplied for all bus stops/routes in the Bell Green Area. 
– Deon Costley 
 
Answer from TfL: We collect lots of data about our services. It would be 
useful to have a conversation so we can understand what is being 
requested and whether we can provide it.  
Lots of this data is already published. A useful starting point would be 
https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/buses-performance-
data 

 
All 
13. What formal travel training is available specifically designed for and 

delivered to people with learning disabilities in Lewisham? How many 
Lewisham residents with learning disabilities have completed this in the 
last year? – Nick O’Shea, Lewisham Mencap 

 

Page 9

https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/buses-performance-data
https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/buses-performance-data


PUBLIC TRANSPORT LIAISON FORUM 

SUPPLEMENTARY (LATE) QUESTIONS 

12 March 2024 

Network Rail 

1. We believe that there is discussion about opening up passenger access from the 

West side of Brockley station but this is dependent on development work on the site. 

Is there still space for an interchange with the Lewisham/Peckham Rye connection if 

this goes ahead? Are the works related? (Robert McIntosh-Forest Hill Society) 

 

Discussions have been held about providing passenger access to Brockely station 

from Mantle Road, on the west side of the station. This is in the context of a 

proposed housing development on the industrial yard. Following our discussions with 

the developer (alongside TfL) the developer has included passive provision for a 

future entrance from this side in their proposals, subject to planning approval and 

S106. 

 

This is not related to an has limited impact on any potential future project to provide 

an interchange with the Lewisham/Peckham Rye line to the immediate north of the 

station. 

TfL 

2. In previous discussions TfL mentioned they were considering the potential to take 

over the Southern routes into London Bridge that were cut. We understand from the 

media that there will be services on this line over Easter and that a trial/training is 

happening on 25th February. Is there any report on how that went and whether there 

are now any further plans to fill the gaps in the Southern schedule, given the 

overcrowding on the Overground? (Robert McIntosh-Forest Hill Society) 

 

Following the withdrawal of peak services to London Bridge by Southern, TfL 

undertook an exercise to establish if we could replace those services, our proposal 

being two trains per hour in the morning and evening peaks. 

During the course of our feasibility study, it emerged that Southern plan to re-

introduce the services in 2025. We will monitor the re-introduction of the Southern 

services and if for any reason that does not progress, we will look at this again. 

London Overground remains committed to establishing a service to London Bridge 

during engineering closures where there is no Southern service through the 

Sydenham corridor, to improve customer options. We successfully ran a test train on 

Sunday 25 February and plan to operate a customer service on Easter Sunday 2024. 

 

3. Can an update be provided on progress to secure the estimated £55 to £60 million 

funding required for changes to the South Circular Road in Catford Town Centre? 

(Mark Morris) 

 

The Strategic Outline Business Case was submitted to the Department for Transport 

(DfT) in March 2023. While we await a formal response from DfT, we have been 

discussing some detailed elements of the submission as part of their review of the 

business case. 

Page 10



Meanwhile, we have continued developing the project design and the next stage of 

the Business Case which we expect to submit to DfT in summer 2024. 

 

Southern 

4. In relation to the Overground trains into London Bridge, are there plans to adjust the 

pricing of trains to London Bridge so that they are not more expensive than 

Overground services (doubly so when connecting to Underground)? One way to help 

with this overcrowding would be to remove the price penalty of a London Bridge 

interchange. (Robert McIntosh-Forest Hill Society) 

 

The zonal system and the design of "circular" over "central" journeys in the fare 

structure is set by colleagues at TfL. Given the combination of the financial 

challenges facing rail and the desire from customers for more services, we would not 

recommend an approach which resulted in overall reduced funding for services. 

 

TfL, Southeastern and Network Rail 

5. Please may we have updates on Lower Sydenham Station's accessibility, safety, and 

wayfinding issues, following on from our walkabout with company representatives on 

5th December? Please may we have any available updates on the condition of the 

Southend Lane railway bridge? (Julia Webb) 

 

This is being answered by Network Rail. 

 

The bridge carrying the Hayes line over Southend Lane was last visually inspected in 

July 2023. This inspection found that the structure is in fair condition. There is 

evidence of repaired damage in the brickwork from previous bridge strikes and some 

corrosion, but nothing concerning.  

In maintaining our structures safety – of passengers, staff, and of the general public 

alike – is always our top priority. We have a regular regime of inspections for all of 

our structures, with annual visual inspections in addition to more extensive 

examinations at set intervals, depending on the structure – for this structure, the 

more detailed examination is on a six-year cycle. The next detailed examination of 

the bridge will take place in May 2025.  

We do not have plans at present to replace this structure with a new bridge and given 

the fair condition of this asset this would not be a priority if funded solely by Network 

Rail. That said, should third party/local contributions be available then we would be 

able to consider adding this to our future business plan. 

The most recent engineer’s report for this structure (the report on the visual 

inspection that took place last summer) has been supplied to the Bell Green Society 

following a request made under FOI. We have also supplied a list of all maintenance 

activity undertaken on the structure dating back to 2000, and a list of all reported 

bridge strikes since 2008. 

TfL and Lewisham 

6. Please may we have updates on Lewisham Highways' ongoing traffic modelling for 

our area? 

Please may we have updates on the cycle/pedestrian parallel crossings proposed for 

Bell Green? (Julia Webb) 

Page 11



 

See response from Lewisham as the borough is leading on this scheme. 

 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Transport Questions/Responses
	PTLFSuppResponses120324


